
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL MEETING @ 8:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chamber 

120 East Main Street – Apopka, Florida 32703 
October 15, 2014 

 
 
INVOCATION  

Senior Pastor James Hicks - Center of Faith Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Red Ribbon Week Proclamation - Presented to Rod Toledo, Nicholas Toledo, Jacob 

Toledo, Victor Vargas, Christian Vargas and Roberto Vargas of the Orlando Devil Dog 

Young Marines 

2. Fire Prevention Month Proclamation - Presented to Jeff Tyre, City of Apopka Assistant 

Fire Chief - Prevention & Safety. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve the minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, 

at 8:00 p.m. 

2. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid No. 2014-13, for Auditing Services, held on 

October 3, 2014, at 10:15 a.m. 

3. Approve the bid from Rosenbauer America, LLC., in the amount of $593,516.00, for 

construction of Heavy Rescue Apparatus. 

Page 1



Page 2 
 

 

4. Approve a request from Greenbrier of Central Florida, LLC., to hold the “Paws For a 

Cause” Festival on October 24 & 25, 2014, at 3703 W. Kelly Park Road. 

5. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit to Tampa Bay Automotive LLC., to hold a 

vehicle sale at Apopka Land Regional Shopping Center. 

6. Approve a request from St. Francis of Assisi Catholic Church to hold their Fall Festival 

on October 24, 25 & 26, 2014, at 834 S. Orange Blossom Trail. 

7. Authorize an expenditure from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund, in the amount of 

$2,500.00, to Apopka High School for the creation of the Academic Consortium of 

Scholars. 

8. Authorize an expenditure from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund, in the amount of 

$12,500.00, for undercover operations. 

9. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity 

Agreement for VitAg Corporation, located 6751 West Jones Avenue. 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

SITE APPROVALS 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

1. Administrative Report - Janice G. Goebel - Interim City Administrator 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

1. Appointment and ratification of Pamela D. Toler to the Planning Commission. 

2. Approval of new City Auditor, Moore Stephens Lovelace, CPA's and Advisors 

OLD BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

NEW BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 

Page 2



Page 3 
 

 

any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

Page 3



Page 4 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, 

at 8:00 p.m. 

  

Page 4



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m., in 

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Sam Ruth 

  Assistant City Attorney Drew Smith 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Roger Ballas - The Apopka Chief     

    Steve Hudak - The Orlando Sentinel 

    Various TV News Reporters and Cameramen 

 

INVOCATION - Pastor Todd Lamphere - The Venue Church at Apopka - Commissioner 

Ruth introduced Pastor Todd Lamphere of The Venue Church at Apopka, who gave the 

Invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer said today is Constitution Day and on this 

day in 1787, following months of debates at the Constitutional Convention in Philadelphia, The 

Constitution of the United States was signed by our Framers. As part of the compromise to ratify 

the new Constitution, additional amendments were debated upon and drafted. Two years later, on 

September 25, 1789, the first Congress of the United States adopted 12 amendments to the 

Constitution, 10 of which would later be ratified and known as the Bill of Rights. He asked all to 

reflect upon the wisdom, deliberation, careful consideration, and prudence of those who helped 

create our Constitution as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PRESENTATIONS  

 

1. Wekiva Parkway Update - Mary Brooks, Public Information Officer. 

 

Mary Brooks provided an update on the landmark Wekiva Parkway project, 30 years in the 

making. She said the Wekiva Parkway will complete the missing link of Central Florida’s 

beltway, as well as taking traffic off of roads such as State Road 441, State Road 46, and 

enhance safety in this area. The Wekiva Parkway includes tremendous environmental 

considerations, passing through the Wekiva River Basin. She advised the Parkway will feature 

all electronic tolling and will be a cashless system, requiring a transponder for tolls, which 

reduces noise and pollution. She reviewed a power point presentation of the project with time 

frames which is on file in the Clerk’s office. She affirmed there will be a preconstruction 

community open house meeting, open to the public, on September 25, 2014, 5:30 to 7:30 p.m., at 

Apopka High School Cafeteria. She reported the entire Parkway will be open by 2021.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean’s inquiry if there were minorities receiving any work given 

the magnitude of this project, Ms. Brooks responded in the affirmative.  

 

 

Page 5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 14 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1.  Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on September 3, 2014, at 

1:30 p.m. 

2.  Approve the minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 3, 2014, at 5:15 

p.m. 

3.  Approve the minutes from a City Council workshop held on September 9, 2014, at 2:00 p.m. 

4. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid No. 2014-02, for Heavy Rescue Apparatus, held 

on September 8, 2014, at 10:15 a.m. 

5. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2014-10, for Apopka Northwest 

Recreation Complex Excavating & Selling Generated Dirt, held on September 10, 2014, at 

10:15 a.m. 

6. Approve and Authorize the Mayor or his designee to prepare and execute the Open Space 

Mitigation Agreement between the City of Apopka and Shoot Straight Holding Co., LLC. 

7. Extend the Orchid Estates Final Development Plan - PR11-05R (112 lot subdivision) and the 

Orchid Estates Mass Grading Final Development Plan - PR11-06 until January 8, 2017.  

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner 

Velazquez, to approve the seven items of the Consent Agenda.  

 

Commissioner Ruth requested to discuss Item 6 and inquired if the Council could be involved in 

some of this process. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer explained this specific agreement allows them to expand the existing 

warehouse. 

 

Motion carried unanimously, with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS - There were no special reports or public 

hearings.  

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  
 

Mayor Kilsheimer requested the consensus of the Council to move to and hear Item 10, 

Resolution No. 2014-10 at this time. With no objection, Council proceeded to Item 10.  

 

10 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-10 - ADOPTION - STREET NAME CHANGE - Changing the 

name of the southern segment of the City street known as “Piedmont-Wekiwa Road,” between 

North Hiawassee Road and Apopka Boulevard, to “Armando Borjas Jr Way.”  The City Clerk 

read the title, as follows: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, TO CHANGE THE SOUTHERN SEGMENT OF THE CITY 

STREET NAME KNOWN AS “PIEDMONT-WEKIWA ROAD,” 

BETWEEN NORTH HIAWASSEE ROAD AND APOPKA BOULEVARD, 

Page 6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 14 

 

AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 139, OF THE PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, TO “ARMANDO 

BORJAS JR WAY;” PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer read the Resolution into the record.  

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Resolution No. 2014-10.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer presented a copy of Resolution 2014-10 to the family of Armando Borjas Jr.  

A street sign was also presented to the family by the Apopka Fire Department. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer requested to move to Item 9, Ordinance No. 2386. Hearing no objection, the 

Council proceeded to Item 9.  

 

9 ORDINANCE NO. 2386 - FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING - Florida Land 

Trust #111 - ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC -  From “County” PD to “City” Planned Unit 

Development (PUD/R-1A) for property located south of Sandpiper Street, west of North 

Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road.  (Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-00-106, 02-21-28-

0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-0000-00-073,  and 

03-21-28-0000-00-119).  The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2386 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” PD TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF SANDPIPER STREET, WEST OF 

NORTH THOMPSON ROAD, EAST OF USTLER ROAD, COMPRISING 

58.23 ACRES MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY FLORIDA LAND 

TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

David Moon, Planning Manager, provided an overview of the project. He explained this property 

was annexed into the City in September, 2008, and prior to that, in 2007 the Board of County 

Commissioners approved a County PD zoning on the property with a maximum of 49 single 

family residential units. He reviewed the Master Site Plan proposed for this project and advised 

that except for two exceptions, the sidewalk and wall, it is consistent with the City 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.  He declared a 30-foot wide conservation 

easement runs along all of the lots and this easement will be deeded to the homeowners 

association who will be charged with the responsibility of overseeing the preservation of that 

conservation easement. He confirmed the trees and natural vegetation are to remain and the 

development standards prohibit use of the conservation easement for pools, fences, or any other 

accessory structures. He affirmed staff recommends approval with exceptions. The Development 

Review Committee recommended a six foot wall from the project entrance to the easternmost 

lot, then from the entrance to the westernmost lot staff recommended a brick or masonry post 

Page 7



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 14 

 

with a wrought iron style fence. He advised sidewalks are proposed within the community along 

each of the 49 lots as well as along Sandpiper Road. He further reported the Planning 

Commission, at the September meeting made a recommendation to not approve the PUD zoning 

with the proposed Master Site Plan as presented. He advised this recommendation did not come 

with a Finding of Facts to explain this decision.  A copy of the staff report is incorporated as a 

part of the minutes.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith inquired as to what became of the agreement from 2009 on how this 

property was to be developed. He stated the majority of the people here to speak are county 

residents and he affirmed at that time the City worked hard to give these people some trust in the 

City.  

 

Mr. Moon said the applicant from 7 years ago and today is the same person/entity. They 

approached the City and addressed a larger number of residential units at a higher density. He 

advised the agreement Commissioner Arrowsmith referenced from 7 years ago was recognized 

and honored.  The plan before the Council is for 49 single family homes, not on the same lot 

configuration as in 2007, but very similar and compatible, creating more open space along Ustler 

Road and the northwest corner of Sandpiper Road.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez pointed out that the Planning Commission did not approve this by a 

6/0 vote. She inquired if the Council could send it back before the Planning Commission. 

 

Mr. Moon advised the Planning Commission made a recommendation based upon the evidence 

and information presented to them at the hearing. He suggested the Council could choose to ask 

the Planning Commission to prepare and present to the Council Findings of Fact as to why they 

recommended denial.  

 

Attorney Smith affirmed the Council does have the right to request the Planning Commission 

explain why they made the decision they made, as they are an advisory board to the Council.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said when the Council is in a quasi-judicial hearing, it is the job of the 

Council and the Planning Commission to make Findings of Fact. In this case, the Findings of 

Fact required to be made is whether or not the application is consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan of the City of Apopka. He inquired if there were any further considerations allowed. 

 

Attorney Smith responded in the affirmative and stated if it is consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan, they may look at the surrounding areas for consistency of development, concurrency issues, 

whether the infrastructure is there to support the development, and that type of detail.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing.  

 

The following people spoke in opposition to the project citing concerns regarding proper notice 

of the public hearing, stormwater drainage into Lake McCoy, impact on traffic, higher density in 

that many moved to the area for the rural setting, acreage for conservation, impact on the 

wildlife, removal of older trees and asking they be preserved, impact on property tax values, loss 

of privacy, safety of school children, as well as how the transfer of ownership was handled. 

 

Page 8



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 14 

 

Ron Edenfield  Jill Cooper 

Lou Haubner   Jack Cooper 

Ellen O’Conno  Jennie McGee 

Mary Schwarberg  Beau Schwarberg 

Les Hess   Kenneth Sumner 

Katherine Youmans  Mary Smothers 

Lillian Myers   Alex Toledo 

 

Allan Goldberg, property owner, said he has been a developer in Central Florida for over 20 

years. He stated he respects all of the speakers here tonight, the majority of which are from 

Oakwater Estates which is south of this property. He provided the history on this property 

starting with 2007 when it was taken through Orange County for PD zoning and they were 

originally requesting 59 lots and they were maxed down to 49 lots. The County’s future land use 

at the time was LDR which is 4 units to the acre and at that time they were still 1 unit to the acre 

which has not changed. He advised in 2008 they brought this to the City of Apopka where 

annexation was approved and the preliminary development plan was approved. In 2013 they 

annexed the remainder of the property. He pointed out that the City’s land use was low density 

suburban on this property, which allows 2 units per acre. He is proposing half of that, 1 unit per 

net acre. He stated at the Planning Commission meeting there was a blanket decision of denial 

made with no Findings of Fact concerning staff approvals or reports, and no recommendations 

made.   A total of 49 lots were approved by the City in 2008 and this is remaining the same. 

After meeting with the homeowners of the southern border of this property, he changed from a 

brick wall to natural buffer. He read a letter into the record from Mike Corbin where he was 

informed that the majority voted in favor of the 30 foot natural buffer with the existing trees, 

vegetation, and fence. He moved three lots within the subdivision so to maintain 15 acres 

undisturbed and as recreation area. He spoke regarding the petition that was turned in, stating 

this was done a year ago at the time he was asking for more lots and he came back to the original 

plan of 49 lots. He said that he feels he has addressed most of the concerns on this petition. He 

reviewed the surrounding developed areas, many of which do not have sewer and he will be 

bringing in sewer to this development. He declared the staff report recommended approval of 

this project as it meets all requirements of the future land use and zoning. Staff made two 

recommendations, one being sidewalks for safety. He would suggest using the internal sidewalks 

and he will construct a path through the recreation area so that it attaches to the corner of Ustler 

Road. This will keep the students off of Sandpiper Road and will be a safer alternative.  The 

second issue was a boundary treatment and this has already been discussed. 

 

Mr. Goldberg discussed trees and wildlife, stating he wanted to keep trees also as it creates much 

more value for the community, and 27 acres are being left as open space, 15 of which are an 

undisturbed park, and a 30 foot undisturbed buffer.  He is committed to not clearing lots, only 

roadways and retention ponds.  Each lot, when applying for a building permit, they must also 

apply for an arbor permit. A wildlife survey only listed gopher tortoises which will be required to 

be relocated. He declared this project will create many jobs and will generate additional property 

tax revenues. He stated this will be a great asset to the city, bringing in infrastructure. He has 

made a conservative effort to alleviate neighbors’ concerns and has made changes to the original 

plan based upon these concerns. He thanked the Council for their time and said he looked 

forward to their approval in constructing a beautiful, viable community. 

 

Page 9



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 6 of 14 

 

Commissioner Velazquez left the meeting at 10:09 p.m.  

 

Steve Harmon said at one time he tried to annex in to the City of Apopka, but couldn’t due to his 

location. He would like to keep his trees in his community and has lived in his house since 1978. 

He is a former Deputy Sheriff and has written many citations on Sandpiper, as well as 

responding to several accidents on this road. He declared speed and traffic were of paramount 

importance.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez returned at 10:12 p.m. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said there has been some discussion regarding the Planning Commission 

providing Findings of Fact regarding their decision. He inquired if that would be more proper, or 

should the Council consider this issue at this time. 

 

Attorney Smith advised the Council could do either. If they decide to request the Planning 

Commission’s input regarding their recommendation, it can be sent back to them, or Council can 

act upon the evidence and testimony heard at this meeting.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he would like to have staff provide on a larger scale the 

differences to be able to have something on a more comparative nature.  He stated he would like 

more time to review this prior to making a decision in order to be fair to all concerned.  

 

It was the consensus of the Council to request the Findings of Fact from the Planning 

Commission.  

 

Attorney Smith advised their decision is based upon competent substantial evidence. He affirmed 

they were not turning the project down by sending it back to the Planning Commission.  

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to send it back to the Planning Commission to reconsider and develop Findings of Fact to 

substantiate their decision. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

 

The Council recessed at 10:19 and reconvened at 10:23. 

 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2378 – FIRST READING – VACATE – GK MAUDEHELEN, LLP 

- Vacating a portion of a platted right of way (cul de sac) located on the east side of Binion 

Road, south of Orange Blossom Trail, and west of Willet Avenue.  The City Clerk read the 

title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2378 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE 

A PORTION OF A PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED EAST SIDE 

Page 10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 7 of 14 

 

OF BINION ROAD, SOUTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, WEST OF 

WILLET AVENUE; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner 

Velazquez, to accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2378, and hold it over for a 

Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2379 – FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - Jason M. Lee, 

property located at 2300 West Ponkan Road. (Parcel I.D. # 19-20-28-0000-00-007) (3.65 +/- 

acres).   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2379 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY JASON M. LEE, LOCATED AT 2300 WEST PONKAN 
ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2379, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

3.  ORDINANCE NO. 2380 – FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - Metzler Family Trust, 

property located at 2133 Vick Road. (Parcel I.D. # 28-20-28-0000-00-010) (5.00 +/- acres). 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2380 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY METZLER FAMILY TRUST, LOCATED AT 2133 VICK 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Page 11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 8 of 14 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, 

to accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2380, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

4.  ORDINANCE NO. 2381 - FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - Property Industrial 

Enterprises, LLC, properties located at 320 and 328 West 2
nd

 Street. (Parcel I.D. #s 09-21-

28-0868-01-250 (0.42 +/- ac) and 09-21-28-0868-01-260 (0.42 +/- ac) (0.84 +/- acre).       

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2381 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, 

LOCATED AT 320 AND 328 WEST 2
ND

 STREET; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2381, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
  

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2382 - FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - Dewar Keene 40 LLC, 

property located at 632 West Keene Road. (Parcel I.D. # 28-21-28-0000-00-024) (9.52 +/- 

acres).   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2382 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY DEWAR KEENE 40 LLC, LOCATED AT 632 WEST KEENE 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

Page 12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 9 of 14 

 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner 

Arrowsmith, to accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2382, and hold it over for a 

Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2383 - FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - Alexander E. & Mary 

E. Dewar, properties located at 205 and 251 East Keene Road. (Parcel I.D. #s 22-21-28-

0000-00-168) (12.74 +/- ac) and 22-21-28-0000-00-137 (4.94 +/- ac) (17.68 +/- acres).     

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2383 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY ALEXANDER E. AND MARY E. DEWAR LOCATED AT 205 

AND 251 EAST KEENE ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2383, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

7. ORDINANCE NO. 2384 - FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - City of Apopka, 

property located at 225 East Keene Road. (Parcel I.D. # 21-21-28-00000-00-033 (1.57 +/- 

acres).    The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2384 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY CITY OF APOPKA, LOCATED AT 225 WEST KEENE 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

Page 13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 10 of 14 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2384, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

8. ORDINANCE NO. 2385 - FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING - Allan Akbar 

Ali, a/k/a All Akbar Ali, from R-1A (0-5 du/ac) (Residential) to AG-E (0-5 du/ac) 

(Residential/Barns/Stables/Livestock) for property located east of Lakeville Road, west of 

North Hiawassee Boulevard, north of Foxwood Court (2277 Lakeville Road).  (Parcel ID No: 

23-21-28-0000-00-044).   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2385 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1A (0-5 DU/AC) to AG-E (0-5 DU/AC) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF 

LAKEVILLE ROAD, WEST OF NORTH HIAWASSEE BOULEVARD, 

AND NORTH OF FOXWOOD COURT (2277 LAKEVILLE ROAD), 

COMPRISING 9.86 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY ALLAN 

AKBAR ALI A/K/A ALL AKBAR ALI; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2385, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

9. ORDINANCE NO. 2386 - FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING - Florida Land 

Trust #111 - ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC -  From “County” PD to “City” Planned Unit 

Development (PUD/R-1A) for property located south of Sandpiper Street, west of North 

Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road.  (Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-00-106, 02-21-28-

0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-0000-00-073,  and 

03-21-28-0000-00-119).  

 

NOTE:  This item was heard second under Ordinances and Resolutions. 

 

10. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-10 - ADOPTION - STREET NAME CHANGE - Changing the 

name of the southern segment of the City street known as “Piedmont-Wekiwa Road,” 

between North Hiawassee Road and Apopka Boulevard, to “Armando Borjas Jr Way.”  

 

NOTE:  This item was heard first under Ordinances and Resolutions. 

 

11. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-11 - Imposing the uniform method of collections for non-ad 

valorem special assessments levied within the Mainline Village subdivision, an incorporated 

Page 14



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 11 of 14 

 

area of the City of Apopka, and certifying the rate to the Orange County Property Appraiser 

and Tax Collector.   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-11 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, ADOPTING A NON-AD VALOREN TAX ASSESSMENT 

ROLL FOR THE MAINLINE VILLAGE SUBDIVISION; PROVIDING 

DIRECTION TO THE FINANCE DIRECTOR FOR CERTIFICATION 

AND TRANSMISSION OF THE ASSESSMENT ROLL TO THE ORANGE 

COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to approve Resolution No. 2014-11.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

12. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-12 - Imposing the uniform method of collections for non-ad 

valorem special assessments levied within the Main Avenue Villas subdivision, an 

incorporated area of the City of Apopka, and certifying the rate to the Orange County 

Property Appraiser and Tax Collector.   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-12 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, ADOPTING A NON-AD VALOREN TAX ASSESSMENT 

ROLL FOR THE MAINE AVENUE VILLAS SUBDIVISION; PROVIDING 

DIRECTION TO THE FINANCE DIRECTOR FOR CERTIFICATION 

AND TRANSMISSION OF THE ASSESSMENT ROLL TO THE ORANGE 

COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner 

Velazquez, to approve Resolution No. 2014-12.   

 

Commissioner Kilsheimer opened the meeting for public comment. 

 

Tenita Reid said she had read where the legislature had imposed a cap on assessments and 

inquired if this applied to special assessments for code violations. She further inquired if this was 

a set price or could it change. 

 

Attorney Smith advised this was not a tax, but a special assessment. He advised that non-ad 

valorem does not follow the same caps or exemptions as Save our Homes.  

 

Mr. Vavrek advised these assessments are pure costs solely for providing the service. This went 

through a bid process and the current bid was for a three year contract, but they do have an out 

should the costs rise.  

Page 15



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 12 of 14 

 

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

13. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-13 - Imposing the uniform method of collections for non-ad 

valorem special assessments levied within the Cimarron Hills subdivision, an incorporated 

area of the City of Apopka, and certifying the rate to the Orange County Property Appraiser 

and Tax Collector.   The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, ADOPTING A NON-AD VALOREN TAX ASSESSMENT 

ROLL FOR THE CIMARRON HILLS SUBDIVISION; PROVIDING 

DIRECTION TO THE FINANCE DIRECTOR FOR CERTIFICATION 

AND TRANSMISSION OF THE ASSESSMENT ROLL TO THE ORANGE 

COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to approve Resolution No. 2014-13.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

 

SITE APPROVALS - There were no site approvals. 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

 

1. Administrative Report - Richard D. Anderson, City Administrator said his report was on 

the city’s website and the Council had a copy before them and he would answer any questions. 

 

MAYOR'S REPORT - Mayor Kilsheimer reported Janice Goebel, City Clerk, has announced 

her intention to retire from the City as of October 31, 2014, filling her dream of moving to North 

Carolina. He said he appreciates all she has done and stated she has done yeoman’s work and has 

been a stalwart assistant during this transition. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported he had been approached by Richard Anderson in that he was 

interested in retiring from the City and transitioning into a new role wherein he would serve as a 

lobbyist and consultant. He advised an agreement has been reached and asked Attorney Smith to 

review these terms. 

 

Attorney Smith reviewed the agreement, the first being with regards to the retirement. The next 

paragraphs relate to the transition of his contract for lobbying services, and project management 

for the Downtown project, the Hospital project, and Kelly Park DRI. He reviewed the job duties 

and advised he will be reporting to the Mayor. He affirmed in this role, Mr. Anderson will be an 

independent contractor.  

 

Page 16



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 13 of 14 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said that Mr. Anderson’s new role in advocating, lobbying, and working on 

behalf of the city will put us in a strong position to be successful for the future.  

 

In response to questions by Commissioners Arrowsmith and Dean regarding what cost this 

would be to the city and what process would be used to replace the position; Tom Callan, 

representing Mr. Anderson, said there was no additional expense with regards to the lobbying, 

this is being transferred to Mr. Anderson. He reviewed the expense involved with the project 

management.  Mr. Anderson added that this was a $140,352 savings to the city. Additionally 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised there would be a National search to fill the position of City 

Administrator. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Dean and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to ratify 

this agreement. Motion carried by a four/one roll call vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, and Velazquez voting aye and Commissioner Ruth voting 

nay.  

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

 1.  COUNCIL  - There was no old business from the City Council. 

 

 2.  PUBLIC  -  

 

Ray Shackelford said he really appreciated the services of the City Administrator. He stated as 

they come to the final budget preparations, he again asked the Council to dig deep into the 

budget to try and find funds for a summer program for the youth, as well as an outreach program 

for the youth.  He further inquired if the committee looking for a new City Administrator would 

be one of diversity. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer responded in the affirmative regarding the committee. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. COUNCIL – Commissioner Dean inquired as to the progress of the project at 436/441. 

 

Mr. Anderson advised it was progressing very well and they hope to have some resolve on this 

project to present in the very near future. 

 

In response to an inquiry by Commissioner Ruth with regards to the cost involved with the 

remaining 9 contracts, Mayor Kilsheimer said these were employee contracts that were signed by 

Mayor Land and his conversations with the City Attorney are that they are valid contracts. Mr. 

Anderson added that the contracts would not cost anything unless the employee is fired without 

just cause.  Commissioner Ruth also expressed concern regarding an environment that was 

created with some that are “double dipping” and how this will be addressed moving forward, to 

which Mayor Kilsheimer said these will be addressed on an individual basis as well as a policy 

level moving forward.  

 

 2.  PUBLIC  - There was no new business from the public. 

Page 17



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on September 17, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 11:08 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Janice G. Goebel, City Clerk 

Page 18



Page 19 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid No. 2014-13, for Auditing Services, held on 

October 3, 2014, at 10:15 a.m. 

  

Page 19



ADMINISTRATIVE BID NO. 2014-13 

 

Request for Proposal 

Auditing Services 

 

City of Apopka Council Chambers 

October 3, 2014, 10:15 a.m. 

 

PRESENT: Linda Goff, City Clerk and Susan Bone, Deputy City Clerk 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

 

OPENING:  Linda Goff called the meeting to order and announced that the bid opening is for the 

“Auditing Services”. 

 

Ms. Goff said the time for submitting additional bids has elapsed, and no more bids will be accepted. 

 

She announced that the bids were duly advertised in The Apopka Chief, legal notices, on Friday, 

September 19, 2014, and in The Orlando Sentinel, legal notices, on Sunday, September 21, 2014. The 

Proof of Publication is on file at the City Clerk’s office. 

 

Four (4) proposals were received prior to the published 10:00 a.m. deadline, as follows: 

 

Purvis Gray & Company 

2347 SE 17
th

 Street 

Ocala, FL  34471 

McDermit Davis CPAs & Advisors 

934 N Magnolia Av, Suite 100 

Orlando, FL  32803 

Moore Stephens Lovelace  

CPAs & Advisors 

1201 S Orlando Av, Suite 400 

Winter Park, FL  32789 

Clifton Larson Allen, LLP 

1715 N Westshore Blvd, Suite 950 

Tampa, FL  33607 

 

 

Ms. Goff said the proposals will be evaluated by a review committee and their recommendations/ranking 

will be presented to the Mayor.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:24 a.m. 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

ATTEST:      Sharon Thornton, Human Resources Director 

 

 

______________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

Page 20



Page 21 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the bid from Rosenbauer America, LLC., in the amount of $593,516.00, for 

construction of Heavy Rescue Apparatus. 

  

Page 21



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: October 15, 2014 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 

SUBJECT: BID 2014-02 – HEAVY RESCUE APPARATUS CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

Request: Approve the Bid from Rosenbauer America, LLC. 

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

On August 1, 2014, in the Apopka Chief, the Fire Department issued an Invitation to Bid for construction 

of a new Heavy Rescue Truck.  The invitation was also posted on Demand Star.  Bid No. 2014-02 was 

opened at a public hearing on September 8, 2014, one bid was received. 

 

Rosenbauer America, LLC  Ocala, FL (Construction in Minnesota) $593,516.00 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

General Fund – the purchase of the new Heavy Rescue Truck is included in the FY 2014/2015 budget.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve a contract with Rosenbauer America to construct the Heavy Rescue Truck. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director (2) 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   Recreation Director    

CA      IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 22



Page 23 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Approve a request from Greenbrier of Central Florida, LLC., to hold the “Paws For a 

Cause” Festival on October 24 & 25, 2014, at 3703 W. Kelly Park Road. 

  

Page 23



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     CONSENT AGENDA   MEETING OF:  October 15, 2014 
             PUBLIC HEARING    FROM: Administration 
             SPECIAL HEARING   EXHIBITS: Special Event Request 
             OTHER:          
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: GREENBRIAR OF CENTRAL FL, LLC – PAWS FOR A CAUSE 

FESTIVAL 
 
Request: APPROVE A REQUEST FROM GREENBRIER OF CENTRAL FL, 

LLC TO HOLD THE “PAWS FOR A CAUSE” FESTIVAL ON 
OCTOBER 24 & 25, 2014, AT 3703 W. KELLY PARK ROAD. 

_________________________________________   ___________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

The applicant has petitioned the City Council for approval of the “Paws for a Cause” Festival to 

be held on October 24 & 25, 2014, at 3703 W. Kelly Park Road.  The proceeds of the event are to 

be used to benefit the Apopka Police Department K-9 Unit Retirement Fund.   

 

The Development Review Committee has reviewed the application and has found it to be 

consistent with the Land Development Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Approve the request from  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.   Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   City Clerk  

Interim CA Janice Goebel   IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit to Tampa Bay Automotive LLC., to hold a 

vehicle sale at Apopka Land Regional Shopping Center. 

  

Page 29



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: _October 15, 2014____ 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        _Administrative Services 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 

SUBJECT: PEDDLER PERMIT REQUEST 

 

 

Request: APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF A PEDDLER PERMIT TO 

TAMPA BAY AUTOMOTIVE LLC FOR A VEHICLE SALE AT APOPKA LAND 

REGIONAL SHOPPING CENTER 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Tampa Bay Automotive LLC is requesting approval for a vehicle sale to be held at the Apopka Land 

Regional Shopping Center (701-825 South Orange Blossom Trail) from November 4, 2014, through 

November 8, 2014.   

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Community Development, Fire and Police 

Departments (including background checks).  

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Consider issuance of a Peddler Permit to Tampa Bay Automotive LLC. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor       Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Approve a request from St. Francis of Assisi Catholic Church to hold their Fall Festival 

on October 24, 25 & 26, 2014, at 834 S. Orange Blossom Trail. 

  

Page 40



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     CONSENT AGENDA   MEETING OF:  October 15, 2014 
             PUBLIC HEARING    FROM: Administration 
             SPECIAL HEARING   EXHIBITS: Special Event Request 
             OTHER:          
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: ST. FRANCIS OF ASSISI CATHOLIC CHURCH – FALL 

FESTIVAL 
 
Request: APPROVE A REQUEST FROM ST. FRANCIS OF ASSISI 

CATHOLIC CHURCH TO HOLD THEIR FALL FESTIVAL ON 
OCTOBER 24, 25 & 26, 2014, AT 834 S. ORANGE BLOSSOM 
TRAIL. 

_________________________________________   ___________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

The applicant has petitioned the City Council for approval of the St. Francis of Assisi Catholic 

Church Fall Festival to be held October 24, 25, & 26, 2014, at 834 S. Orange Blossom Trail.   

 

The Development Review Committee has reviewed the application and has found it to be 

consistent with the Land Development Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
Approve the request from St. Francis of Assisi Catholic Church to hold their Fall Festival on 
October 24, 25 & 26, 2014, at 834 S. Orange Blossom Trail. 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.   Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   City Clerk  

Interim CA Janice Goebel   IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Authorize an expenditure from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund, in the amount of 

$2,500.00, to Apopka High School for the creation of the Academic Consortium of 

Scholars. 

  

Page 57



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

 
X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: __October 15, 2014    
___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        __Police Department_ 
     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    __Request Memo      
     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 
SUBJECT:  

$ 2,500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS  
 
Request:  

AUTHORIZE A $ 2,500.00 DONATION FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST 
FUNDS TO APOPKA HIGH SCHOOL FOR THE CREATION OF THE 
ACADEMIC CONSORTIUM OF SCHOLARS TO PROVIDE INCENTIVES FOR 
STUDENT ACADEMIC SUCCESS. 

  
SUMMARY: 
 
The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 
Funds in the amount of $ 2,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School for the creation of the Academic 
Consortium of Scholars to provide incentives for student academic success. Law Enforcement Trust 
Funds may be used to support community-based programs. In accordance with trust fund rules, a local law 
enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total of shared monies received for the costs associated 
with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or other nonprofit community-based 
programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law enforcement officer. The Apopka Police 
Department supports initiatives that promote youth activities which are consistent with a healthy, 
anti-drug lifestyle. These expenditures are supportive of and consistent with the department’s support of 
local school activities. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $ 2,500.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director 
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 58



 
 

 
 
 
 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6th Street Apopka, Florida 32703 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
 

Date:  October 15, 2014 
 
To:  Honorable Joseph E. Kilsheimer and Commissioners 
 
RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 
 
 
 
The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 
Funds in the amount of $ 2,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School for the creation of the Academic 
Consortium of Scholars to provide incentives for student academic success. Law Enforcement Trust Funds 
may be used to support community-based programs. In accordance with trust fund rules, a local law 
enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total of shared monies received for the costs associated 
with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or other nonprofit community-based 
programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law enforcement officer. The Apopka Police 
Department supports initiatives that promote youth activities which are consistent with a healthy, anti-drug 
lifestyle. These expenditures are supportive of and consistent with the department’s support of local 
school activities. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Robert M. Manley 
Chief of Police         

Page 59



Page 60 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Authorize an expenditure from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund, in the amount of 

$12,500.00, for undercover operations. 

  

Page 60



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

 
 X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: __October 15, 2014 _ 
___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        __Police Department_ 
     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    __Request Memo      
     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 
SUBJECT:  

$12,500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 
 
Request:  

AUTHORIZE A $12,500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT 
TRUST FUNDS FOR INVESTIGATIVE DRUG BUYS AND UNDERCOVER 
OPERATIONS. 

  
SUMMARY: 
 
The Police Department requests City Council approval for the expenditure of funds from the 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $12,500 for investigative buys and 
undercover operations. These funds will be drawn down as needed in $ 2,500 increments. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $12,500.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 61



 
 

 
 
 
 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6th Street Apopka, Florida 32703 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
 

Date:  October 15, 2014 
 
To:  Honorable Joseph E. Kilsheimer and Commissioners 
 
RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 
 
 
 
The Police Department requests City Council approval for the Finance Department to disburse $12,500.00 
of Law Enforcement Trust Funds drawn down in $2,500 increments to the criminal investigations 
custodian. These funds will be used to conduct investigative drug buys and further other associated 
undercover operations. 
 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Robert M. Manley 
Chief of Police         

Page 62



Page 63 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity 

Agreement for VitAg Corporation, located 6751 West Jones Avenue. 

  

Page 63



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: October 15, 2014 

       PUBLIC HEARING     FROM: Community Development 

      SPECIAL REPORTS                                                       EXHIBITS:  Phasing Plan    

      OTHER:                                                Agreement 

          
________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: VITAG CORPORATION – WATER AND SEWER CAPACITY FACILITY 

AGREEMENT 

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT FOR VITAG 

CORPORATION 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for VitAg 

Corporation, located 6751 West Jones Avenue. 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement VitAg 

Corporation, located 6751 West Jones Avenue. 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk (4) 

Interim CA Janice Goebel  IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.   Police Chief 

 

Page 64



1 

SEWER & WATER CAPACITY & CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT 
AGREEMENT 

UNINCORPORATED ORANGE COUNTY 

P r o j e c t :  V i t A g  Z e l l w o o d  M a n u f a c t u r i n g  P l a n t   

THIS AGREEMENT made as of this  _____  day of September, 2014 by and 

between the City of Apopka, a municipal corporation (hereinafter sometimes referred to 

as the "City"); and VitAg Florida, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Owner"). 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka has enacted ordinances 

providing for Sewer and Water Capital Facility Fees; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns or controls lands located at 6751 West Jones 

Avenue as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof as is fully 

set out in this paragraph and (hereinafter referred to as the "Property") and Owner or its 

successors or assigns intends to construct the VitAg Zellwood Manufacturing Plant  on 

the Property per plans on file in the City of Apopka’s Public Services Department as of 

this date (hereinafter referred to as the “Plant”); and 

WHEREAS, Owner, pursuant to its Memorandum to the City dated March 20, 

2014 (hereinafter referred to as the “Service Request”), has officially requested that the 

City provide sewer and water service to the Plant to be located on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the City is willing to provide, in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement, water and sewer service to the Plant and thereafter operate applicable 

facilities so that the Plant will receive adequate sewer service and water supply from the 

City to meet the Service Request; and 

Page 65



2 

WHEREAS, Owner is obligated to pay certain Capital Facility Fees in conjunction 

with this commitment for capacity and desires to execute this Agreement with the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1. Compliance.  

The Owner agrees that both it and its successors and assigns will abide by the 

provisions of this Agreement and the relevant ordinances of the City and that it will 

install or have installed the improvements required by the City in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement and of said ordinances. The Owner further understands 

and agrees that, in the development of subject property, failure to abide by the terms of 

this Agreement, the provisions of the City's ordinances, or any other applicable 

regulations, ordinances, or laws from time to time existing, shall constitute ground for 

refusal by the City, or the appropriate authority thereof, to allow such development to 

obtain further inspections, to institute utility services, or to permit occupancy of 

completed improvements. 

Section 2. Definitions. 

A. "ERU (Water)" means Equivalent Residential Unit defined as having the 

average demand of 400 gallons per day. 

B. "ERU (Sewer)" means Equivalent Residential Unit defined as having the 

average demand of 350 gallons per day. 

C. "FDEP" shall mean the Department of Environmental Protection of the 

State Florida. 

D. “FDEP Permit” shall mean the FDEP approval/permit to construct a 

domestic wastewater collection/transmission system. 

Page 66



3 

E. “Full Production Date” shall mean the date upon which Owner provides the 

Commercial Operations Date Certificate, approved by the Owner’s Independent 

Engineering firm contracted to review the construction of the Plant based upon the 

satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Indenture of Trust dated as of July 1, 2014 

between the Orange County Industrial Development Authority and Citibank, N.A., as 

Trustee. 

F. "Point of Delivery" - The point where the pipes or meter of the City are 

connected with the pipes of the Owner. Unless otherwise indicated, Point of Delivery 

shall be at the Owner's lot line. 

G. "Service" -The readiness and ability on the part of the City to furnish and 

maintain water and sewer service to the Point of Delivery pursuant to applicable 

ordinances, laws, rules, regulations, permits and City policies. 

Section 3. Capital Facility Fee.  

Owner hereby agrees to pay the City the following Capital Facility Fees: 

A. Sewer Capital Facility Fee: Based on estimated flows in the Service Request, 

Owner agrees to pay the City $1,524,672.00 for 288.00 Sewer ERU's at 

$5,294.00 per ERU. 

B. Water Capital Facility Fee: Based on estimated flows in the Service Request, 

Owner agrees to pay the City $16,835.00 for 5.00 Water ERU's at $3,367.00 per 

ERU. 

C. The actual amount of impact to the City’s sewer and water system will be 

evaluated by the City of Apopka Engineering Division one year after the Full 

Production Date. Any variation to the estimated sewer flows or water usage will 

Page 67



be added or subtracted from the Sewer Capital Facility Fee and the Water 

Capital Facility Fee, as applicable, and payment true-up will occur at the end of 

the payment schedule in Section 4(A). 

Section 4. Payment of Capital Facility Fees. 

A. Sewer Capital Facility Fee: The total amount of the Sewer Capital Facility Fee due 

and payable by the Owner to the City is $1,524,672.00 and will be paid as 

follows: 

1. On applying for the FDEP Permit, the Owner will pay the City an amount 

of $457,401.60, which represents 30% of the Sewer Capital Facility Fee 

due; 

2. 20% of the Sewer Capital Facility Fees, or $304,934.40, at the time of 

receiving the FDEP Permit; 

3. 15% of the Sewer Capital Facility Fee, or $228,700.80, when construction 

of the sewer connection commences; and 

4. The remaining 35% of the Sewer Capital Facility Fee, or $533,635.20, will 

be paid in 48 monthly payments of $11,117.40 each, commencing on the 

first day of the month following the month of the Plant has commenced 

operation, and continuing on the first day of each month thereafter. 

Note: Per the Note in Section 3, the monthly payment may be adjusted based 

upon the evaluation of the actual impact to the system after one year. 

B. Water Capital Facility Fee: The total amount of the Water Capital Facility Fee due 

and payable by the Owner to the City is $16,835.00 and will be paid as follows: 

Page 68



4 

1. On applying for the FDEP Permit, the Owner will pay $5,050.50, which 

represents 30% of the total Water Capital Facility Fees Due; 

2. 35% of the Water Capital Facility Fees, or $5,892.25, will be paid at the 

time of receiving the FDEP Permit;  

3. The remaining thirty-five percent (35%), or $5,892.25, on the first day of 

the month following the month in which the Plant has commenced 

operation. 

Note: Per the Note in Section 3, the monthly payment may be adjusted based 

upon the evaluation of the actual impact to the system after one year. 

Section 5. Repayment of Capital Facility Fees.  

If no FDEP Permit is obtained or if a FDEP Permit expires and FDEP has 

released all permitted capacity back to the City and no construction has been 

commenced, then applicant shall be entitled to a refund of the capital facility fees paid 

as a condition for issuance, except that the City shall retain three percent (3%) of the 

refunded fees as a fee to offset the costs of collection and refund. 

Section 6. Agreement to Serve. 

Upon the completion of construction of the water and sewer facilities by Owner, 

their inspection, the payment of the fees at the times required under this Agreement, 

and the issuance of the final letter of acceptance by the City, the City covenants and 

agrees that it will allow the connection of the water and sewer facilities installed by 

Owner to the central facilities of the City and shall provide utility service in accordance 

with the terms and intent of this Agreement. Such connections shall at all times be in 

accordance with rules, regulations and orders of the applicable governmental authorities 

Page 69



including the City.  The City agrees that once it provides water and sewer service to the 

Property and Owner has connected to its system, that thereafter the City will 

continuously provide, in accordance with the other provisions of this Agreement, 

including rules and regulations and rate schedules, water and sewer service to the 

Property in a manner to conform with all requirements of the applicable governmental 

authority. 

Section 7. Binding Effect of Agreement.  

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Owner, 

the City and their respective assigns and successors by merger, consolidation, 

conveyance or otherwise, subject to the terms of this Agreement, as contained herein.  

Section 8. Notices.   

All notices or communications herein required or permitted to be given shall be in 

writing and mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, or delivered as follows:   

If to the City: The City of Apopka 
Public Services Department 
748 E. Cleveland Street 
Apopka, Florida 32703 
Attention:  Director 
 

If to the Owner: 
 
 

VitAG Florida LLC 
117 Allwin Lane 
Beech Island, SC 29842 
Attention:  President 
 

With a copy to: VitAg Holdings, LLC 
117 Allwin Lane 
Beech Island, SC 29842 
Attention:  Secretary 

  
In all cases, with a 
copy to the Trustee: 

Citibank, N.A. 
388 Greenwich Street 
14th Floor 
New York, NY 10013 
Attention:  Agency & Trust – VitAg Florida LLC Page 70



A duplicate copy of each notice or communication given hereunder by either the 

City or the Owner to the other shall also be given to the Trustee.  The City and the 

Owner may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to 

which subsequent notices, certificates and other communications shall be sent. 

Promptly after the date of this Agreement, the City shall execute and deliver to 

the Trustee an acknowledgement in the form set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto. 

Section 9. Costs of Enforcement.   

In the event the City or the Owner is required to enforce this Agreement by Court 

proceedings or otherwise, by instituting suit or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall 

be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred, including reasonable 

attorney's fees. 

Section 10.  Applicable Law; Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and it shall 

be and become effective immediately upon execution by both parties hereto.  This 

Agreement supersedes all previous agreements or representations, either verbal or 

written, heretofore in effect between City and Owner, made with respect to the matters 

herein contained, and when duly executed, fully constitutes the Agreement between City 

and the Owner. No additions, alterations or variations of the terms of this Agreement 

shall be valid, nor can provisions of this Agreement be waived by either party, unless 

such additions, alterations, variations or waivers are expressed in writing and duly 

signed. 

Page 71



Section 11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute 

one instrument. 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

  

Page 72



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this SEWER AND 

WATER CAPACITY AND CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT as of 

the date set forth in the first paragraph hereof. 

 

 THE CITY OF APOPKA, a municipal 

corporation: 

      

 

 

By:______________________________ 

     Janice G. Goebel 
     Interim City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
Attest:____________________________ 
         Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 
 _______________ , 20 by JANICE G. GOEBEL and LINDA GOFF,  
Interim City Administrator and City Clerk respectively, of CITY OF APOPKA, a Florida 
municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation. They are personally known to me 
and did not take an oath. 

S E A L NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

_______________________ 
  

Page 73



WITNESSES AS TO OWNER OWNER:  VITAG FLORIDA, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company 

By: Its Manager:  VitAg Corporation 

_______________________ By:_________________________ 

 Name:_______________________ 
_______________________ Title:   _______________________ 

 
 
 
STATE OF  ___________________ 
 
COUNTY OF ___________________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 
 ________________ , 20 by ___________________________________________  
(Name of officer or agent) of VitAg Corporation, the Manager of VitAG Florida, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the limited liability company. He is 
personally known to me or has produced  ____________________________________   
(type of identification) as identification and did (did not) take an oath. 

S E A L 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

_______________________ 

 

 
  

Page 74



EXHIBIT A 

 
Description of the Property 

 
Parcel 1  

The Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4of the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 

1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 all lying in Section 21, Township 20 South, Range 27 East in Orange 

County, Florida. All lying South of the railroad and West of railroad siding. Less the following 

described parcel: Begin at the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said 

Section. Thence run East 197.34 feet, thence North 1304.18 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest 1/4 of said section, thence West along the North line of the Southeast 1/4, 209.31 feet 

to the Northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said section, thence South to the point of 

beginning. Also less the road right of way and the West 30 feet of the above described parcel, 

Orange County, Florida. 

Also less: Commence at the West 1/4 corner of Section 21, Township 20 South, Range 27 East; 

thence run N. 89°30'39" E. along the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 21, Township 20 

South, Range 27 East, a distance of 1974.42 feet for a point of beginning; thence N. 00°21'18" 

W. a distance of 205.76 feet to a point on the Southerly railroad right-of-way and to a point of 

non-tangency on a curve concave Southwesterly, having a radius of 899.78 feet, a chord bearing 

of S. 25°39'43" E., a chord distance of 886.70 feet, run thence Southeasterly along the arc of said 

curve, through a central angle of 59°02'25", a distance of 927.18 feet; thence S.00°20'26" E. a 

distance of 685.65 feet; thence S. 89°43'24" W. along the North right-of-way line of Jones 

Avenue a distance of 375.00 feet; thence N. 00°31'40" W. a distance of 1280.99 feet to the point 

of beginning. All of the above is subject to all easements, rights-of-way and restrictions of 

record, if any. 

Together with: Easement rights contained in the Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records 

Book 3459, Page 839 over the following described property: 

A 30' strip of land lying East of and contiguous with the following described line: From the 

Northwest corner of South West 1/4 of Section 21, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, Orange 

County, Florida, run thence South 89° 54' 30" East along the North line of said Southwest 1/4 of 

Section 21 a distance of 209.31 feet for a point of beginning, thence South 01° 14' 44" West a 

distance of 1304.18 feet to a point in the centerline of pavement of Jones Avenue for a point of 

terminus. 

Parcel 2  

A portion of land in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of the Norwest 1/4, lying north of  Railroad 

right of way, LESS road right of way on the North, Section 21, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, 

Orange County, Florida.   

   

Page 75



EXHIBIT B 

 
FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
[to be placed on City’s Letterhead] 

 
September ___, 2014 
 
Citibank, N.A. 
388 Greenwich Street 
14th Floor 
New York, NY 10013 
Attention:  Agency & Trust – VitAg Florida LLC 
 
Re: That certain Sewer and Water Capacity and Capital Facility Fees Payment 

Agreement, dated September ___, 2014 (the “Contract”) between The City of 
Apopka (“City”) acknowledges and agrees that VitAg Florida, LLC (the 
“Borrower”) 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
City acknowledges and agrees that the Borrower has collaterally assigned all of its right, 
title and interest in and to the above-described Contract to Citibank, N.A., or its 
successors or assigns (the “Trustee”), pursuant to a certain Security Agreement, dated 
as of July 1, 2014, as amended, between the Borrower and the Trustee.  City shall, 
upon giving Borrower notice of any Borrower default under the Contract, at the same 
time give a copy of such notice to the Trustee, and no notice to Borrower of any 
Borrower default hereunder shall be deemed to be duly given unless and until a copy 
thereof shall have been so given to the Trustee.  The Trustee, or its designee, may (but 
shall not be obligated to) cure any such Borrower default within thirty (30) days after the 
date of such notice; or, if such Borrower default cannot reasonably be cured by the 
Trustee within such 30-day period, within such longer period of time not to exceed 
ninety (90) days as is reasonably necessary to effect such cure (“Cure Period”), 
provided that Trustee (a) notifies City of its intent to cure such Borrower default and 
commences action to cure such Borrower default within such initial 30-day period and 
(b) thereafter proceeds to cure such Borrower default with reasonable diligence.  No 
curing of any default on behalf of the Borrower shall be construed an assumption by the 
Trustee or its designee of any obligations, liabilities, or agreements of the Borrower.  In 
that event, City shall accept such performance as if the same were done by the 
Borrower.  The Contract shall not be terminated by City during any period in which the 
Trustee is entitled to attempt, and is attempting, to cure a default, in each case, during 
the Cure Period. Should the Trustee or its designee succeed to Borrower’s rights 
hereunder, City will thereafter tender performance of the Contract to the Trustee or its 
designee, in which event, the Trustee or such designee shall assume all of the 
obligations of the Borrower under the Contract arising from and after the date the 
Trustee or its designee succeeds to the Borrower’s rights hereunder.  
 Page 76



Other than as expressly provided in the foregoing sentence, in no event shall the 
Trustee have any duty, obligation or liability under the Contract.  In the event the 
Trustee (or any of its designees) is substituted for the Borrower as described above, 
City agrees to accept performance of the Borrower’s obligations under the Contract by 
the Trustee (or any of its designees) in lieu of the Borrower’s performance of such 
obligations; provided that neither the Trustee nor its designee shall have personal 
liability to City for the performance of such obligations and the sole recourse of the City 
in seeking to enforce the Trustee’s (or any of its designees’) obligations under the 
Contract shall be limited to the Trustee’s interest in the Project; and provided further that 
in the event the Trustee (or any of its designees) is substituted for the Borrower under 
the Contract and the Trustee or designee subsequently assigns the Contract to a 
transferee, the Trustee and any such designee shall be released of all liability under the 
Contract accruing from and after the date of such transfer. It is acknowledged and 
agreed that, in connection with the Trustee’s exercise of its rights under the Security 
Agreement, the Trustee shall be entitled to all of its rights, benefits, protections and 
immunities set forth in the Indenture.” 
 
Sincerely,  
 
[Signature of Authorized City Employee] 

Page 77



Page 78 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Administrative Report - Janice G. Goebel - Interim City Administrator 

  

Page 78



    
    Presented To: Mayor and City Council 
    Presented By: Janice G. Goebel, Interim City Administrator 

 October 15, 2014 

Administrative Report  

Page 79



Visits      
2095 

Unique 
Visits        
1791 

Page Views 
10476 

Pages/Visit  
4.98 

Avg. Visit 
Duration 
00:03:12 

% New 
Visits 

70.41% 

A.S.K. 
Apopka Service Kiosk 

November 2013 – September 
2014 

Page 80



3 

3329 
4611 

6827 
8385 

12937 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Building Webpage Visits 

234024 273981 
379121 

640032 

421750 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Homepage Visits 

Page 81



4 

$484,188 $488,490 

$830,321 

$1,535,818 

$1,145,839 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Sewer Impact  

$244,395 
$293,257 

$520,871 

$685,458 $726,539 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Water Impact 

$475,254 $508,917 

$1,607,067 

$990,841 

$1,749,158 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Transportation Impact 

$2,864,265 

$1,191,951 $1,290,873 

$1,849,509 
$1,596,051 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

School Impact 

Page 82



5 

$459,569 

$222,216 

$347,006 
$425,304 $388,418 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reuse Impact  

$54,718 

$32,060 

$55,200 

$73,520 

$57,311 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Recreation Impact 

194 

205.6 

194.8 

181.1 180.9 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Average Potable Water 
Billed 

213 
167 

258 281 
305 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

New Potable Meters 
Set 

Page 83



6 

9073 9096 9480 10549 

14977 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

ACH   

11969 12658 13260 13761 
16264 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Office Window   

5710 
5601 

5495 

5235 

5564 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Drop Box   

18702 18927 18888 
18491 

20488 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Drive-Up 
Window 

26838 
31352 35589 39720 

50709 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Web   
62916 

61222 
58503 

55772 

61094 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Mailed   

Page 84



7 

55 
67 

77 
89 

78 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Arbor Permits 

$555 

$1,988 

$1,030 
$1,313 

$1,132 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Arbor 
 Revenues 

$8,279 $1,738 $6,701 

$56,100 
$82,110 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Tree Bank  
Revenues 

Page 85



8 

132 

61 
107 92 77 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Automated Phone 
System Requests   

2604 

1555 1638 1506 

3805 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Internet Inspection 
Requests 

4516 4906 5265 
6465 6930 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Office Inspection 
Requests 

Page 86



9 

2718 
2284 

2595 
2971 

3271 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Permits Issued 

$90,161,460 
$72,178,149 

$142,341,329 

$113,316,429 $111,081,127 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Value of  
Construction 

181 
107 

182 189 

350 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Certificates of 
Occupancy Issued 

7252 6521 7013 7993 

11600 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Inspections  Performed 

Page 87



10 

7.34 
7.59 

7.1 
6.8 6.8 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Water Plant – Average 
Daily Flow 

2.8 
2.55 2.6 

2.8 2.9 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Wastewater  Plant 
Average Daily Flow 

157 

188 187 

159 168.5 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reclaimed Gallons 
Produced 

134 
168 180 

134 149.2 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reclaimed Gallons 
Used 

Page 88



11 

13468 13385 13507 

13898 

14264 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Residential Customers 

638 638 640 
646 

658 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Commercial Customers 

11907 12774 13188 13621 
15406 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Recycling Customers 

Page 89



12 

Public Services - Water Conservation  
January - September 

47 

10 

60 

7 

21 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Program Rebates 

34 
41 

13 15 

37 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Rain Sensors Issued 

103 

155 
176 

115 

172 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

System Evaluations 

$1,231  
$1,025  $930  $1,040  

$2,006  

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Rebate Value 

Page 90



13 

1935 

918 

2411 

1478 1432 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

League Events 

153 
136 132 126 

148 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Senior Events 

1289 

2042 
1752 

1522 
1851 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Facility Events 

44258 52157 

97636 
111821 

64764 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Special Events 
Attendees 

Page 91



14 

2694 2570 2607 2708 

3228 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

EMS Calls For Service 

1009 
978 

1007 

897 

1063 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

NFIRS Calls For 
Service 

1857 1794 1931 1992 2161 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Annual Inspections 

Page 92



15 

2511 

1442 1430 

2448 
2074 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Uniform Traffic Citations 

79 
65 

101 

76 
60 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

DUI Arrests 

1498 

567 
268 

939 

543 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Warning Citations 

100 

22 22 

344 

58 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Parking Citations 

Page 93



16 

63 70 

131 112 

215 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Unkempt Cases 

39 
24 

35 
48 

141 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Disabled Vehicle Cases 

170 161 
257 272 

636 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total Code Enforcement Cases 

Page 94



17 

182 175 188 
229 

280 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

New Business Tax 

791 

229 
459 

92 

1493 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Business Tax Renewals 

Page 95



Page 96



Page 97 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Appointment and ratification of Pamela D. Toler to the Planning Commission. 

  

Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102


	Top
	1. 10/15/14 - Proclamation - Red Ribbon Week
	2. 10/15/14 - Proclamation - Fire Prevention Month
	1. 10/15/04 - Approve Minutes
	09-17-2014.pdf

	2. 10/15/14 - Administrative Bid Minutes
	Bid 2014-13.pdf

	3. 10/15/14 - Bid 2014-02 Heavy Rescue Apparatus
	Fire Heavy Rescue Truck.docx

	4. 10-15-14 - CC - Consent Agenda - Greenbrier of Cen FL, LLC - Paws For a Cause Festival
	1 10-15-14 - Greenbrier Of Cen Fl - Paws for a Cause Festival.pdf
	2 10-15-14 - Greenbrier of Central - Paws for a Cause Application.pdf

	5. 20141015_Council Agenda_Peddler Permit
	20141015TampaBayAutomotivePeddlerPermit.pdf
	Peddler Permit -  Tampa Bay Automotive.pdf

	6. 10-15-14 - CC - Consent Agenda - St. Francis of Assisi Catholic Church Fall Festival
	1 10-15-14 - St Francis of Assisi Catholic Church Fall Festival.pdf
	2 10-15-14 - St Francis of Assisi Catholic Church Fall Festival App.pdf

	7. Oct 15- Council- AHS Academic Consortium 
	AHS Back-To-School Donation GS.pdf
	AHS Back-To-School Donation MEMO.pdf

	8. Oct 15- Council- Expenditure from Law Enforcement Trust Funds
	Oct 15 2014 Inv Funds 2014-15_5.pdf
	Oct 15 2014 Inv Funds Memo 2014-15_4.pdf

	9. 10-15-14 - CC - Consent Agenda - VitAg Corporation - Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement
	1 VitAg Water_Sewer Capital Facility Agree.pdf
	2 VITAG Capital Facility FeesPayment Agreem_.pdf

	1. 10/15/14 - Administrative Report
	201409AdministrativeReport.pptx

	1. 10/15/14 - Mayor&apos;s Report - Appointment
	Board Appt. Toler.pdf

	2. 10/14/2015 - Mayor&apos;s Report- Auditor
	Bottom

